
 
 

 
 

TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING COMMITTEE 

 
 
11 July 2012 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A Meeting of the Tamworth Local Parking Committee will be held in Committee 
Room 1 Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth on Wednesday, 18th July, 
2012 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Apologies  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or personal and   
prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 

 

When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and prejudicial 
interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the 
nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they have a 
personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not have a 
dispensation. 

 

4 Staffordshire Joint Parking Board 10th July 2012  

 Report for information – All Committee Members are asked to note all papers and 
minutes are available to view on Staffordshire County Council website including 
the annual report for Tamworth Borough Council, 
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=204&Year=2012 
 

5 Progress Report For Civil Parking Enforcement At Tamworth For The 
2011/12 Year (Pages 5 - 8) 

 Report of the District Nominated Officer (attached) 
 

6 Update On The Residents Parking Zone - West Street/Albion Street Area  

 Update report of the Community Highway Liaison Manager (East Staffordshire, 
Lichfield and Tamworth) 
 

7 Update On The Traffic Regulation Order Programme And New Requests  

 • Works completed/in progress 

• Planned and project work 
 
Update report of the Community Highway Liaison Manager (East Staffordshire, 
Lichfield and Tamworth) 
 

8 Update On The Ziggy And Zaggy Campaign At Tamworth Schools  

 • Schools completed and planned 
 
Verbal update of the Neighbourhood Services Manager 
 

9 Consideration Of Any New Areas To Be Assessed For The Introduction Of 
New Traffic Regulation Orders  

 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk  
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
To Councillors 



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

TAMWORTH LOCAL PARKING 

COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 28th MARCH 2012 

 
 

 
PRESENT: County Councillor Michael Oates (Chair), Councillors S Claymore, 

K Norchi, M Oates and R Pritchard 

 County Councillor B Beale and County Councillor J Wells 

 
The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Director - Assets and 
Environment), Joanne Sands (Neighbourhood Services Manager) and Larry 
Phillips (Car Parks & CCTV Supervisor) , C Thomas, R Rayson and H Portman 
(SCC) 
 
 

1 APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2011 were approved and 
signed as a correct record. 
 

3 ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED: That County Councillor Michael Oates be appointed as Chair. 

 
(Moved by Councillor Mary Oates and seconded by Councillor K Norchi) 
 
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor S Claymore be appointed as Vice-Chair. 

 
(Moved by Councillor Mary Oates and seconded by County Councillor Michael 
Oates) 
 
 
 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

28 March 2012 

 

 

2 
 

 
5 STAFFORDSHIRE JOINT PARKING BOARD 13 DECEMBER 2011  

 
The reports presented were noted by the Committee. 
 
Mr Barratt reported that they were there for record with all items previously 
discussed at the Local Parking Committee. Annual reports are available for all 
Districts. 
 

6 CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1 SEPTEMBER - 29 FEBRUARY 2012  

 
Mr Barratt presented a progress report on civil enforcement in Tamworth to 29 
February 2012. 
 
The revised deployed hours for officers has contributed to reduction in operating 
costs and to date contractor is achieving the new target hours within predicted 
model. 
 
The PCN issuance is still dominated by off street enforcement (70%/30%) with 
deployed hours currently 60% on street and 40% off street. 
 
The current outturn position deficit is within those anticipated, however is not 
predicted that the service will become self sufficient and further work is ongoing 
with Staffordshire County Council to address this. 
 
Recommendation by Cllr Michael Oates to revise the model for predicted off/on 
street PCNs within the budget forecast for clarity. Agreed by Mr Barratt. 
 
Cllr Claymore asked for more clarity regarding blue badge holders at the High 
Rise Flats. Mrs Sands confirmed that blue badge residents must display permit 
also and parking bays were not for non resident or people not visiting the flats. 
Blue badge holders still permitted to park on street (out of the resident bays) in 
accordance with the regulations. 
 
Cllr Michael Oates asked about signs in St Edithas which he reported as not 
present. Mrs Portman to check. 
 

7 UPDATE ON THE RESIDENTS PARKING ZONE - WEST STREET/ALBION 

STREET AREA  

 
A verbal report was received from Mr Rayson regarding the progress of first 
priority RPZ in Tamworth. 
 
Mr Rayson reported that the objection period to the scheme ends on 29th March 
2012. 
 
Two have been received – one from Albion Street which suggested no need for 
the scheme and one from West Street querying why they were not on the RPZ 
list. 

Page 2



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

28 March 2012 

 

 

3 
 

 
Representation will be considered after Easter 2012 by Staffs County and finding 
brought back to the next Local Parking Committee. 
 
Cllr Claymore asked a question with regard to the amount of permits for residents. 
Mrs Portman advised that it was usually one resident and visitor pass per 
property. This was included in the assessment of how many properties and space 
available. For houses with multiple vehicles, the County Council may be able to 
access other on street restrictions once a RPZ is in place to see if other spaces 
could be made available. 
 
Cllr Claymore raised the issue of the residents not included. Mr Rayson 
suggested that due to the advanced nature and support for the Traffic Regulation 
Order that it would be more practical to continue with the RPZ as first planned 
and to look at the other areas for future implementation rather than begin again. 
Mr Rayson agreed to clarify this with County as a way forward.  
 
Agreed by Cllr Michael Oates and seconded by Cllr Claymore 
 

8 UPDATE ON THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PROGRAMME AND NEW 

REQUESTS FOR PRIORITY CONSIDERATION  

 
Mrs Portman updated on the current projects:- 
 

• Wigginton Road/Comberford Road – Traffic Regulation Order completed 
o Implementation of half on road/footpath restriction implement 

• Ninefoot Lane/Kettlebrook Road – Consultation on junction protection 
underway 

• Ventura Park – new restrictions to be considered on Fazeley Road/ 
Bonehill Road due to the impact of traffic at Ventura Park (a discussion 
around ongoing issues at Ventura then took place)  

• Faringdon, Glascote – petition handed to Mr Rayson. No loading at any 
time restrictions – Cllr Norchi to raise the issue with Cllr Jeremy Oates 

• Moor Lane, Amington – County Council are currently looking at the issues 
here 

• Vehicles turning right from Hockley Road, Wilnecote onto the A5. Cllr 
Beale asked if anything could be done due to the narrowing of the road 
here. Mr Rayson requested that this was raised as a separated enquiry at 
the Divisional Highways Programme Meeting. 

• Glascote Heath – St Peters Church/Hawksworth. Cllr Michael Oates asked 
about the possibility of parking bays at this location. To be forwarded to the 
Portfolio Holder for Quality of Life to be considered as part of the 
environmental works programme. 

 
9 UPDATE ON THE ZIGGY AND ZAGGY CAMPAIGN AT TAMWORTH 

SCHOOLS  

 
Mrs Sands reported that the schools campaigns had been successful in the 
Wilnecote area recently. 
 

Page 3



Tamworth Local Parking 
Committee 

28 March 2012 

 

 

4 
 

Postcards remain available for any schools who wish to continue with their own 
campaigns or send them to parents. 
 
The Ziggy and Zaggy would continue as resources permit. 
 

10 DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  

 
Discussion took place around the frequency of Local Parking Committees. 
 
It was agreed that three meetings per year would be sufficient – July, November 
and March. Mrs Sands to update the calendar. 
 

  

 Chair  
 

Page 4



Tamworth Local Parking Committee 
 

18th July 2012 
 

Civil Parking Enforcement 
Progress and Performance Report for the period 1st April 2011 to 31st 

March 2012 
 

Report of the District Nominated Officer for Tamworth Borough Council 
 
1 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide an update on the progress of Civil Parking Enforcement in 
Tamworth Borough for the 2011/12 year 
 
2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
3 Key Issues 
 
3.1 This is the first year that that the revised deployment model and PCN 
projection has been in place.  The deployed enforcement hours were reduced 
to a maximum of 550 per month (in line with 2009/10). This continues to be 
monitored and managed with a view to resource the enforcement provision to 
suit the need.   
 
In 2011/12 the on street deployment figure was 65% (4306 hours) of current 
deployed hours. Off street deployment was 35% (2343 hours). Our contractor 
has achieved 95% of the revised deployment model overall, exceeding the 
partnership KPI of 90%.   
 
The financial model also provided for anticipated levels of PCN issuance to 
meet budget predications.  This has been revised to reflect the 2010/11 
actuals and provides a more accurate basis for on and off street split. 
 
The revised figures for PCN projection for Tamworth are 242 per month on 
street and 300 per month off street and this is the basis upon which the 
predicted budget position was forecast. 
 
The split between off street and on street continues to be dominated by off 
street PCN’s which represent 62% of those issued.  
 
The total number of PCN’s issued up to the 31st March 2012 was 6077 (3767 
Off Street and 2310 On Street). This PCN issue rate represents a 93.43% 
achievement of profiled predictions against the financial model, exceeding the 
partnership KPI of 90%. 
 
The PCN cancellation rate for 2011/12 is within expected KPIs with only 1% of 
cancellations due to CEO error.  Overall 15% of PCNs issued are cancelled. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 
 
 
4 Relationship to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 To create and sustain a thriving local economy and make Tamworth a 
more aspirational and competitive place to do business. 
To achieve this, we will: 
a) Raise the aspiration and attainment levels of young people 
b) Create opportunities for business growth through developing and using 
skills and talent 
c) Promote private sector growth and create quality employment locally 
d) Brand and market “Tamworth” as a great place to “live life to the full” 
e) Create the physical and technological infrastructure necessary to support 
the achievement of this primary outcome. 
 
 
5 Background 
 
Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

5.1 The table below provides information relating to Penalty Charge Notices 
(PCN) that have been issued for both on and off street contraventions for 1st 

April 2011 until 31st March 2012. The data was taken as at the 20th June 
2012. 
 

Deployed 
Hours 
 

Revised 
Model 

Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 4200 4306 +2.52% 
 

 

Off Street 2808 2343 -16.56% 
 

 

PCN Issue Projected Actual Variance 
 

 

On-Street 2904 2310 -20.45% 
 

 

Off-Street 3600 3767 +4.64% 
 

 

 Projected Actual Outstanding 
Balance 
(PCNs issued 
not yet paid) 
 

 

Income 
received 
 

£164157 (as 
per 2011/12 
predicted) 

£163133 (to 
31st March 
2012) 

£41,575.16 (full 
value rate of 
outstanding 
PCNs income to 
be accounted 
for in 2012/13 
once verified) 

 

Page 6



 
 

  Actual 
 

  

Cancellations  15% 
 

  

Of which are 
CEO Error 
 

 1% 
 

  

 
5.2 The predicted income figure noted above is in line with the predicted 
outturn for 2011/12. 
 
5.3 The actual income figure of £163133 is the amount certified as being 
received as at 31st March 2012 and the outstanding balance refers to PCNs 
issued during 2011/12 for which any payment has not been received.  Actual 
income will be accounted for in 2012/13 as per previous years once verified.   
 
5.3 Of the cancellations noted in the table above the below table gives a 
breakdown by the most common category of cancellation. This information is 
being used to inform proactive management of the enforcement contract. 
 
5.4 The most significant rate of cancellations (26%) remains that of PCNs 
issued for the incorrect or failure to display a blue badge permit or clock. 
 

Reason Number of tickets 
 

Disabled badge – face down 119 Total 
278 Disabled badge – not on display first time 115 

Disabled clock not on display 44 

P & D ticket face down 202 

PA Error – issued incorrectly 69 

Permit provided – first contravention 70 

P&D Ticket provided – first contravention 55 

 
6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1 The revised deployment contract, PCN issuance predictions and predicted 
expenditure has resulted in a net deficit to the 2011/12 Tamworth CPE 
account of £11439 against a predicted deficit of £9689. 
 
6.2 Expenditure to the service is in line with predictions at the beginning of 
2011 and the current issue rate has achieved a 93.43% outturn against 
predictions.  This will continue to be monitored closely. 
 
6.3 Indications are that maintenance of current level of PCN rate and 
deployment will result in a predicted deficit for 2012/13 of £29135.  Further 
work will be undertaken with our contractor to address this concern. 
 

Page 7



6.4 All financial and statistical figures were taken as at 20th June 2012 
 
7 Risk Management Issues 
 
7.1 Reliance being placed upon a predicted outturn that is based upon 
estimated levels of income. 
 
7.2 Expenditure and income requires further review with all partners to reduce 
income incurred to reduce the risk of further financial deficit. 
 
7.3 Current predictions do not suggest that the Tamworth CPE budgets will 
result in surplus for the foreseeable future. 
 
8 Equality Issues 
 
8.1 None 
 
This report has been produced having considered the following additional 
issues Strategic Plan Implications, Sustainability Issues, Climate Change, 
Human Rights, Issues, Crime and Community Safety Issues, Data Protection 
Act Implications, Legal Implications, Human Resource Implications 
 
 
 
 
Previous Consideration  
 
Nil 
 
Background Papers 
 
Nil 
 
 

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Progress Report For Civil Parking Enforcement At Tamworth For The 2011/12 Year

